
Goodhue County Board of Adjustment

Government Center- Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

July 25, 2022 BOA Draft Meeting Minutes

BOAMEETINGMINUTES_JULYMEETING_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Parking Setbacks And Outdoor Activity 
Conclusion Time For Non-Agricultural Use Associated With Agricultural Tourism

Request for Variance submitted by Michael Barck (Owner) to Non-Agricultural Use 

Associated with Agricultural Tourism requirements to allow parking to be less than 40 feet 

from property lines and allow outdoor activities to continue after sundown for a 

wedding/event facility. Parcel 38.016.1000. 42593 HWY 52 BLVD Zumbrota, MN 55992. 

Part of the E ½ of the SE ¼ of Section 16 TWP 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township. A -1 

Zoned District. 

BOAPACKET_BARCK.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Minimum Setback Standards

Request for Variance, submitted by Emanuel Gingerich (Applicant) on behalf of Thomas 

Welsh (Owner), to allow construction of an accessory building less than 30 feet from side 

and rear property lines and less than 60 feet from the Ludlow Avenue Right-of-Way. Parcel 

32.015.0400. 30100 Ludlow Avenue Frontenac, MN 55026. Part of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼ 

of Section 15 TWP 112 Range 13 in Florence Township. A-2 Zoned District.  

BOAPACKET_GINGERICH.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Appeal Of Zoning Administrator ’s Interpretation Of Zoning Ordinance 
Definitions And Permitted Uses In The R-1 Suburban Residence District

Request submitted by Christopher Pesklo (Owner) appealing the Zoning Administrator ’s 

determination that beekeeping is an agricultural use and is therefore not a permissible use 

in the R-1 Suburban Residence District. Parcel 36.160.0100. 510th ST Path Kenyon, MN 

55946. Block 2 of Skyberg in Kenyon Township. 

BOAPACKET_PESKLO.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

http://mn-goodhuecounty.civicplus.com/


Goodhue County Board of Adjustment

Government Center- Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

July 25, 2022 BOA Draft Meeting Minutes

BOAMEETINGMINUTES_JULYMEETING_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Parking Setbacks And Outdoor Activity 
Conclusion Time For Non-Agricultural Use Associated With Agricultural Tourism

Request for Variance submitted by Michael Barck (Owner) to Non-Agricultural Use 

Associated with Agricultural Tourism requirements to allow parking to be less than 40 feet 

from property lines and allow outdoor activities to continue after sundown for a 

wedding/event facility. Parcel 38.016.1000. 42593 HWY 52 BLVD Zumbrota, MN 55992. 

Part of the E ½ of the SE ¼ of Section 16 TWP 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township. A -1 

Zoned District. 

BOAPACKET_BARCK.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Minimum Setback Standards

Request for Variance, submitted by Emanuel Gingerich (Applicant) on behalf of Thomas 

Welsh (Owner), to allow construction of an accessory building less than 30 feet from side 

and rear property lines and less than 60 feet from the Ludlow Avenue Right-of-Way. Parcel 

32.015.0400. 30100 Ludlow Avenue Frontenac, MN 55026. Part of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼ 

of Section 15 TWP 112 Range 13 in Florence Township. A-2 Zoned District.  

BOAPACKET_GINGERICH.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Appeal Of Zoning Administrator ’s Interpretation Of Zoning Ordinance 
Definitions And Permitted Uses In The R-1 Suburban Residence District

Request submitted by Christopher Pesklo (Owner) appealing the Zoning Administrator ’s 

determination that beekeeping is an agricultural use and is therefore not a permissible use 

in the R-1 Suburban Residence District. Parcel 36.160.0100. 510th ST Path Kenyon, MN 

55946. Block 2 of Skyberg in Kenyon Township. 

BOAPACKET_PESKLO.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

https://co.goodhue.mn.us/d24dcc63-6058-4f72-a579-746d440639a9


BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 July 25, 2022 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

1 

 

 

 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Board of Adjustment was called to order at 5:02 PM by Chair Daniel 
Knott at the Goodhue County Government Center Board Room.   

Roll Call  

Commissioners Present: Daniel Knott, Darwin Fox, Randy Rechtzigel, and Keith Allen (via phone). 

Commissioners Absent: Denny Tebbe    

Staff Present: Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, Zoning Assistant Alexandra Koberoski, and 
Zoning Administrative Assistant Patty Field  

1. Approval of Agenda 
1Motion by Commissioner Fox and seconded by Commissioner Rechtzigel to approve the July 25, 2022, 
amended meeting agenda removing the public hearing for Kevin Riester.   

 
Motion carried 4:0 

2. Approval of Minutes  
2Motion by Commissioner Fox and seconded by Commissioner Rechtzigel to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes.   

  
Motion carried 4:0  
 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest 
 

There were no conflicts of interest reported.     
  
4. Public Hearings:  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance to Bluffland Standards 
Request for Variance, submitted by Dustin Schroeder (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland Protection 
Standards) to allow construction of an accessory building less than 30 feet from the top of a bluff. Parcel 
40.033.0303. 50927 Branch Trail Pine Island, MN 55963. Part of the NW ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 33 
TWP 109 Range 16 in Roscoe Township. A-2 Zoned District.   
 
Koberoski presented the staff report and attachments.  
 
Dustin Schroeder (Owner) stated the reason he does not want to put the building to the north is that it will be 
more accessible closer to the existing driveway. He also won’t have to drive over his sidewalk and through the 
yard to get to the building. He also stated that the fiber optic cables were installed in an unideal location 
because the proposed building cannot be moved closer to the dwelling.   
 
Commissioner Rechtzigel asked if the fiber optic cable only served Mr. Schroeder’s property. 
 
Mr. Schroeder stated that it runs up to his house along the driveway and only serves his home. He stated he 
asked them to relocate the cables but the contractor would not return to change the location.   
 
Commissioner Fox said he and Koberoski went for a site visit.  He noted that a hole was dug and there was 
some rebar present, he questioned the reason for the rebar.  
 
Mr. Schroeder stated the rebar was for a retaining wall. 
 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 July 25, 2022 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

2 

 

 

Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing 

No one spoke for or against the request. 
3After Chair Knott asked three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner Fox 
and seconded by Commissioner          Rechtzigel to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 4:0 
 
Chair Knott stated there is some concern with locating the structure to the north with access 
constraints. 
 
Commissioner Fox said that this is a unique situation. He is concerned with maintaining the existing 
vegetation in the bluff area if the request is granted.    
 
Chair Knott stated it looks like the septic is in front of the house and the well is to the east. This restricts 
the accessibility to the rear yard area.    
 
Commissioner Fox confirmed and added that there is an electrical box blocking the access to the rear 
yard as well. 
 
Chair Knott asked staff if they spoke to Chad Hildebrand in Soil and Water Conservation to discuss best 
management practices.  
 
Pierret stated Mr. Hildebrand reviewed the site and assisted staff in determining the location of the 
bluff. Mr. Hildebrand recommended installing silt fence along the top of the bluff and leaving silt 
fencing in place until the area is 70% revegetated.  
 
Mr. Schroeder said he won’t be going into the vegetated area. He asked if he still needed a silt fence.   
 
Pierret clarified that the silt fence was to prevent excessive erosion from the work area and revegetation 
meant the area needs to have grass or natural vegetation established in 70% of the impacted area 
before removing the silt fence.   
 
Chair Knott questioned the retaining wall proposal noting it was not on the application. 
 
Pierret stated that the retaining wall location should be included in the variance request therefore the 
distance to the top of the bluff should be reduced to account for additional impacts within the 30-foot 
setback.   
 
Mr. Schroeder stated the retaining wall will be approximately ten feet from the east side of the building. 
 
Discussion continued regarding the location of the retaining wall and the Board concluded that a 
variance to allow a structure and retaining wall no less than 20 feet from the top of a bluff would be 
sufficient. 
4Motion by Fox, seconded by Allen, for the Board of Adjustment to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Dustin Schroeder (Owner) to Article 12 (Bluffland 
Protection Standards) to allow construction of an accessory structure no less than 20 feet from the top of 
a bluff where 30 feet is required.   
 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 July 25, 2022 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

3 

 

 

Motion carried 4:0 
 
5. Other-Discussion  

A thank you to Keith Allen for joining the meeting virtually tonight.   

We do have something on the agenda for the next meeting on August 22.   

ADJOURN 
5Motion by Fox, seconded by Rechtzigel to adjourn the BOA meeting at 5:27 pm.  

Motion carried 4:0 

Respectfully submitted:   
 
Patty Field, Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 

 MOTIONS 
 

 

1 APPROVE the meeting agenda as amended.                                                                                                                    
Motion carried 4:0 
2 APPROVE the previous meeting minutes.  
 Motion carried 4:0  
3Close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 4:0 
4APPROVE the Variance request to Bluffland Protection Standards to allow construction of an accessory structure no less than 20-feet 
from the top of a bluff where 30-feet is required.   
Motion carried 4:0 
5ADJORN 
Motion carried 4:0 



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Board of Adjustment 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: August 22, 2022 
Report date: August 12, 2022 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance to Parking Setbacks and Outdoor Activity 
Conclusion Time for Non-Agricultural Use Associated with Agricultural Tourism 
Request for Variance, submitted by Michael Barck (Owner) to Non-Agricultural Use Associated with 
Agricultural Tourism requirements to allow parking to be less than 40 feet from property lines and 
allow outdoor activities to continue after sundown for a wedding/event facility.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicants: Michael Barck (owner) 
Address of zoning request: 42593 HWY 52 BLVD Zumbrota, MN 55992 
Parcel: 38.016.1000 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the E ½ of the SE ¼ of Section 16 TWP 110 Range 16 in 
Minneola Township 
Township Information: Minneola Township emailed acknowledgment of the proposal on August 5, 
2022. The Applicant will need to obtain formal approval from the Township prior to commencing 
operations and prior to beginning construction or remodeling of any buildings.  
Zoning District: A1 (Agriculture Protection District) 
 
Attachments and Links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Maps 
Article 11, Section 30 (Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agricultural Tourism) and Definitions 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The Applicant (Michael Barck) is requesting a variance to allow the establishment of parking areas 
for a wedding/event facility 1 foot from property lines where 40 feet is required and a variance to 
allow outdoor activities to continue after sundown. The Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO) 
requires outdoor activities associated with a Non-Agricultural Use Associated with Agricultural 
Tourism to end during daylight hours.  
 
Variance Standards: 
Variances shall only be permitted when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance and when consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan. 
Variances may be granted when the applicant establishes “practical difficulties” exist in complying 
with the existing official controls. Practical difficulties mean the applicant proposes to use the 
property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control, the plight of the landowner is 
due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if 
granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. Economic considerations alone do not 
constitute practical difficulties.  
 
 
 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

Draft Findings of Fact: 
 
1) Harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official control: 

Parking: 
 The minimum setback for parking areas for Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with 

Agricultural Tourism is intended to allow for separation between parking areas and 
neighboring uses. The intent is to allow for adequate space for screening (if needed) and to 
provide distance between parking areas where dust or noise may be present and neighboring 
properties, particularly residences. 

 The Applicant has proposed to operate a wedding/event facility on his property in compliance 
with the GCZO and any additional State or Federal requirements. The Applicant intends to 
use space within an existing detached garage as a groom’s suite, construct a new structure to 
serve as a bridal suite and restroom facility, and erect an event tent for event activities. The 
Applicant has applied for a Conditional Use Permit for the facility and the Planning Advisory 
Commission will consider this request at their August 15, 2022 meeting. Their 
recommendation will be forwarded to the Goodhue County Board for final action.  

 The Applicant has indicated up to 250 guests can be accommodated under his proposal. He 
has indicated approximately 115 gravel parking spaces will be provided along the existing 
driveway and running south behind the detached garage. Some paved handicap-accessible 
parking will be provided as well.  

Pursuant to GCZO Article 11, Section 16, the Zoning Administrator has determined 
minimum off-street parking provisions shall be one parking space for every 4 guests. A 
minimum of 63 off-street parking spaces are required for this facility at a maximum 
occupancy of 250 guests.  

Given the Applicant’s proposal will meet Goodhue County off-street parking requirements the 
Applicant’s proposal appears in harmony with the purpose and intent of the official control. 

Outdoor Activity Hours: 
 The GCZO requires outdoor activities associated with Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with 

Agricultural Tourism to be completed during daylight hours. The intent is to prevent noise 
impacts on neighboring properties, particularly residences, during later hours.  

 The Applicant has proposed to use a 40-foot x 80-foot seasonal tent for activities. The use of a 
tent for activities is considered an outdoor activity subject to the requirement for activities to 
end during daylight hours. The Applicant has indicated events would be Wednesdays through 
Sundays from 9:00 AM to midnight May through October.  

Given the Applicant has proposed to use the property as a wedding/event facility where a 
seasonal tent would contain all event activities after daylight hours and the facility is setback 
a significant distance from the nearest dwellings, the proposal appears in harmony with the 
purpose and intent of the official control.  

2) The variance request is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan: 

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan supports a broad-based, diversified, stable, year-
round economy that provides a range of goods, services, and employment opportunities.  

 The Comprehensive Plan also prioritizes considering site capabilities and existing 
development patterns when determining the appropriate locations of land uses.  

 Allowing for tourism-related businesses and activities within the context of maintaining a 
diverse and balanced economy while minimizing potential negative impacts is also a priority.  

 In agricultural areas, the Comprehensive Plan suggests striving for a land use balance, which 
recognizes both agricultural uses and the non-agricultural development that may be suitable 
for rural Goodhue County sometimes in close proximity.    

The Applicant’s request does not appear inconsistent with the Goodhue County 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 

Comprehensive Plan. 

3) There are “practical difficulties” in complying with the official control (the 
applicant proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control, the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the 
property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter 
the essential character of the locality): 

 The Applicant’s non-contiguous 26.56-acre parcel is a conforming lot size in the A1 District 
(2-acre minimum). The area to be used for the wedding/event facility is located on a 5-acre 
portion of the property.  

 As an A1 zoned section, a maximum of 4 dwellings are permitted within Section 16. Currently, 
there are 11 dwellings in section 16 therefore there is no additional dwelling density available. 
Section 15 directly west of the property is also considered “full” for dwelling development with 
4 dwellings.  

 The Applicant’s request to establish a wedding/event facility with associated structures and 
parking is a reasonable use of property in the A1 District.  

 The use would meet or exceed all other regulations of the GCZO.  

Parking: 
 The Applicant has noted that acreage west of the existing driveway is in a Conservation 

Reserve Program (CRP) and cannot be used for parking, events, or wells/septic systems.  

 The Applicant has also stated parking would be limited to the area along the driveway and 
continue south behind the garage. Much of the land south of the garage will be used for the 
proposed structure, tent, and new septic system. Parking will not be permitted near the 
dwelling to maintain privacy.   

 Land directly east of the driveway is currently used for row crop agriculture therefore there 
would be no negative visual impacts nor negative impacts due to dust or vehicle lights to any 
dwellings.  

 The request for a variance to parking setbacks appears unlikely to alter the essential character 
of the locality.  

Outdoor Activity Hours: 
 The Applicant has proposed to use a seasonal tent for events. There is not a structure large 

enough on the property to safely accommodate a large number of people.  

 The Applicant has indicated music would end by 11:00 PM and would be directed away from 
dwellings.  

 Neighboring dwellings are more than ¼ mile away and are separated from the property by 
cropland, woods, and Highway 52. 

 Staff conducted a site visit on August 2, 2022. The property is isolated and the request for a 
variance to outdoor activity hours appears unlikely to alter the essential character of the 
locality.   

4) No variance may be granted that would allow any use that is not allowed in the 
zoning district in which the subject property is located.  

 Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agricultural Tourism are permitted via CUP in the A1 
District. The Applicant has submitted a CUP application for consideration by the PAC and 
County Board.  

 

The draft Findings of Fact shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed at the Board of Adjustment 
meeting and public hearing. 
 

The Board should specify the facts and reasons that are the basis of the Board’s determination. In 
granting a variance, the Board of Adjustment may impose conditions directly related to, and bearing a 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 4 

rough proportionality with, the impact(s) created by the variance. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

APPROVE the variance request, submitted by Michael Barck (owner), to Non-Agricultural Uses 
Associated with Agricultural Tourism Performance Standards (Article 11, Section 30) to allow event 
parking to be established no less than 1-foot from the east property line where 40 feet is required and 
to allow outdoor events to continue Wednesdays through Sundays May through October until 
midnight.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



















Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance   Article 11  Amended December 7, 2018 

 

 

SECTION 30.    NON-AGRICULTURAL USES ASSOCIATED WITH 
AGRICULTURAL TOURISM  
Subd. 1. Non-agriculturally related uses that are associated with Agricultural Tourism as defined 

in Article 10 (Definitions) may be permitted in the A-1, A-2, or A-3 Zone Districts subject 
to approval subject to approval of a zoning permit by the Zoning Administrator for up to 
two (2) events/activities per calendar year.  The right to utilize property for more than two 
events/activities per calendar year is subject to approval of a conditional use permit or an 
interim use permit by the Board of County Commissioners. The following information 
must be provided with a zoning permit, interim use or conditional use permit: In addition 
to submittal requirements set forth Article 4 (Conditional and Interim Uses), the following 
information must be provided with a conditional use permit or interim use permit 
application. 

A. Plan drawn to an appropriate scale for effective interpretation. 

B. Property boundaries, onsite parking areas and access roads. 

C. Existing uses on adjacent properties and distance of dwellings within 500 feet of 
the property boundary. 

D. Existing and proposed structures with maximum capacity of each building where 
guests have access as required to comply with building code and applicable fire 
safety requirements. 

E. Location of temporary toilet facilities, which may be required. 

F. Location of any existing or proposed wells or Subsurface Wastewater Treatments 
Systems (SSTS). 

G. A written description of the planned activities providing including maximum 
number of guests/visitors. 

H. Frequency and number of activities proposed in a calendar year. 

I. Hours of Operation/Activity including set-up/clean-up for activities and events.  

J. Maximum number of guests for any activity. 

K. Proposed site lighting or landscaping. 

L. Anticipated maximum number of vehicle trips per day. 

Subd. 2 Performance Standards.   

In addition to all other applicable zoning ordinance requirements including but not 
limited to the review criteria (findings) included in Article 4, Section 5, the following items 
shall be considered by the Planning Advisory Commission and County Board when 
reviewing a Conditional Use Permit or Interim Use Permit Application for various Non-
Agricultural Uses associated with Agricultural Tourism.  

A. The size of the function and the number of expected guests on the property at one 
time shall be determined at the sole discretion of the County based on parcel size, 
proximity to adjacent neighbors and the ability of the applicant to demonstrate 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance   Article 11  Amended December 7, 2018 

 

that there will be no unreasonable adverse impact on the neighbors from the noise, 
traffic, trespass, light or other impacts deemed relevant by the County. 

B. There is adequate provision for parking of vehicles so that there is no parking on 
public roads and adequate setbacks from adjacent properties are maintained. 
Temporary parking areas may be approved at the sole discretion of the County. 
Parking areas must be a minimum of forty (40) feet from all property lines, and 
appropriately screened from neighboring property. Light sources shall be directed 
downwards and shielded to prevent light being directed off the premises. 

C. The County may require a planted buffer between adjacent properties and parking 
or building if it is determined that such a buffer is necessary to avoid adverse 
impacts on adjacent properties. 

D. All State of Minnesota and Goodhue County requirements related to Water and 
Subsurface Wastewater Treatment Systems must be met. 

E. Outside activities shall be completed during daylight hours. Inside activities shall 
be completed by 10:00 PM unless approved through the CUP process to conclude 
no later than 12:00 AM (midnight). 

F. Any on-site preparation and handling of food or beverages must comply with all 
applicable Federal, State or Local Standards. 

G. The owner/operator will maintain a log of the activities occurring at the included 
activity/event dates, group identity, times and number of guests. 

H. The site plan with the above written descriptions along with any condition added 
during Planning Advisory Commission and/or County Board review will become a 
part of any approved conditional use permit or interim use permit. 

 

Section 31.    ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS (ADUS)  
Subd. 1.   Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) are dwelling units that are accessory to a primary 

dwelling unit and are on the same tax parcel of land as the primary dwelling unit.   

A.   An ADU can be either:  

  1. Attached to, or within the primary dwelling unit; or  

2. Located within 100 feet of the primary dwelling unit on the same tax parcel 
as the primary dwelling unit.  

B.   ADU’s must have separate kitchen and bathroom facilities  

C.   Only one (1) ADU is permitted per primary dwelling site tax parcel  

D.   The ADU cannot be separated from the primary dwelling tax parcel  

E.   Dwelling units that were permitted as temporary dwelling units that request to be 
converted to ADU status must have a public hearing at the PAC and approved by 
the County Board.   

Subd. 2.   Performance Standards  

A. Setbacks: The ADU must meet all district setbacks for structures  



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance  Article 10   September 3, 2019 

products (fish, fish products, water plants and shellfish); horticultural specialties 
(nursery stock, ornamental shrubs, flowers and Christmas trees); maple sap, etc. 

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCT, VALUE-ADDED.  This means the enhancement or 
improvement of the overall value of an agricultural commodity or of an animal or plant 
product to a higher value. The enhancement or improvement includes, but is not limited 
to marketing, agricultural processing, transforming, or packaging, education 
presentation, activities, and tours. 

AGRICULTURAL RELATED PRODUCTS.  Means items sold at a farm market to 
attract customers and promote the sale of agricultural products. Such items include, but 
are not limited to all agricultural and horticultural products, animal feed, baked goods, 
ice cream and ice cream based desserts and beverages, jams, honey, gift items, foodstuffs, 
clothing and other items promoting the farms and agriculture in Goodhue County and 
value-added agricultural products and production on site. 

NON-AGRICULTURAL RELATED PRODUCTS.  Means those items not connected 
to farming or the farm operation, such as novelty t-shirts or other clothing, crafts, and 
knick-knacks imported from other states or countries, etc. 

AGRICULTURAL TOURISM.  “Ag-tourism” and/or “Agri-tourism” means the 
practice of visiting an agribusiness, horticultural, or agricultural operation, including, but 
not limited to, a farm, orchard, vineyard, winery, greenhouse, hunting preserve, a 
companion animal or livestock show, for the purpose of recreation, education, or active 
involvement in the operation, other than as a contractor or employee of the operation. 

AGRICULTURAL USE.  The use of land for agricultural purposes, including farming, 
dairying, pasturage agricultural, forestry horticulture, viticulture, and animal and poultry 
husbandry and the necessary accessory uses for packing, treating and storing the 
produce; provided, however, that the operation of any such accessory uses shall be 
secondary to that of the normal agricultural activities. 

AGRICULTURAL RELATED USE.  Means activities that are accessory to the 
principal use of the property for permissible agriculture use that predominantly use 
agricultural products, buildings or equipment including activities, events or uses that 
represent “agricultural tourism” in Goodhue County as defined in this section, including 
but not limited to: 

  A. Bakeries selling baked goods containing produce grown primarily on site 

  B. Barn dances 

  C. Corn mazes or straw bale mazes 

D. Educational events including but not limited to:  activities associated with the 
promotion of wine usage, viticulture or viniculture classes, historical 
agricultural exhibits, and farming and food preserving classes. 

E. Gift shops for the sale of agricultural products and agriculturally related 
products. 

F. Petting farms, animal display, and pony rides 

G. Playgrounds or equipment typical of a school playground 

H. Pumpkin rolling 

I. Sleigh/hay rides 

J. Vineyard harvest festivals 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance  Article 10   September 3, 2019 

LOWEST FLOOR.  See Article 32 (Floodplain District)  
MANUFACTURED HOME.  See Article 32 (Floodplain District)  
MANUFACTURED HOUSING.  A manufactured building or portion of a building 
designed for long-term residential use. 
MAXIMUM DENSITY. A density standard establishing the maximum number of 
dwellings allowed in a Section, ¼ ¼ Section, District, or Subdivision.  In order to 
maintain a balance of compatible uses, when the maximum density has been 
reached, the only opportunity to increase the density is through a change of zone 
process that would allow additional housing. Reestablished abandoned homestead 
sites are not included in the density count until they have been approved and 
permitted. 
MIGRATORY LABOR CAMP.  Temporary facilities provided by the employer on 
his own land for the housing of workers who for seasonal purposes are employed in 
the planting, harvesting, or processing of crops. 
MINERAL EXTRACTION, ACCESSORY USE.  See Article 14 (Mineral 
Extraction) 
MINERAL EXTRACTION, PRINCIPAL USE.  See Article 14 (Mineral 
Extraction) 
MINERAL EXTRACTION.  See Article 14 (Mineral Extraction) 
MINERAL EXTRACTION  FACILITY.  See Article 14 (Mineral Extraction) 
MINERAL EXTRACTION  PERMIT.  See Article 14 (Mineral Extraction)  
MINERAL RESOURCE.  See Article 14 (Mineral Extraction) 
MINING TECHNICAL EVALUATION PANEL.  See Article 14 (Mineral 
Extraction) 
MINING/EXCAVATION OPERATION.  The removal of stone, sand, and gravel, 
coal, salt, iron, copper, nickel, petroleum or other material from the land for 
commercial, industrial, or governmental purposes. 
MOBILE HOME.  Manufactured housing built on a chassis. 
MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME PARK.  This term applies to any lot or 
tract of land upon which two (2) or more occupied trailer coaches or mobile homes 
are harbored either with or without charge and including any building or enclosure 
intended for use as a part of the equipment of such park.  
NACELLE.  See Article 18 (WECS) 
NON-AGRICULTURAL USES/ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATED WITH AN AGRI-
TOURISM USE.  This means activities that are part of an agri-tourism operation’s 
total offerings but not tied to farming or the farm’s buildings, equipment, fields, etc. 
Such non-agriculturally related uses include but are not limited to: 

A. Temporary Amusement rides associated with an event   
B. Art or cultural related festivals 
C. Gift shops for the sale of non-agricultural products 
D. Benefit events  
E. Kitchen facilities, processing/cooking items for sale (subject to State of 

Minnesota, Department of Public Health standards) including eating 
establishments such as restaurants or cafés. 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance  Article 10   September 3, 2019 

F. Temporary camping (subject to State of Minnesota Department of Public 
Health Standards for Recreation Camping) 

G. Wedding ceremonies or receptions 
H. Wine and catered food events 
I. Reunions 
J. Concerts 
K. Social gatherings or similar types of events.  

NON-CONFORMING LOT OF RECORD.  Any legal lot of record that at the time 
it was recorded fully complied with all applicable laws and ordinances but which 
does not fully comply with the lot requirements of this Zoning Ordinance concerning 
minimum area or minimum lot width. 
NON-CONFORMING STRUCTURE.  A structure the size, dimensions or 
location of which was lawful prior to the adoption of this Zoning Ordinance, but 
which fails by reason of such adoption, or subsequent revisions or amendment, to 
conform to the present requirements of the zoning district. 
NON-PREVAILING WIND.  See Article 18 (WECS) 
NORMAL WATER LEVEL.  The level evidenced by the long-term presence of 
surface water as indicated directly by hydrophytic plants or hydric soils or indirectly 
determined via hydrological models or analysis.  
OBSTRUCTION.  Any dam, wall, wharf, embankment, levee, dike, pile, abutment, 
projection, excavation, channel, modification, culvert, building, wire, fence, 
stockpile, refuse, fill, structure, matter in, along, across, or projecting into any 
channel, watercourse, or regulatory floodplain which may impede, retard or change 
the direction of the flow of water, either in itself or by catching or collecting debris 
carried by such water. 
ODOR. The odor of growing vegetation, domestic fertilizers, animal manures, 
insecticides, and other agricultural odors shall not be considered objectionable. 
OPEN SPACE. Land that is permanently protected from future dwelling 
development.  Land that is designated as Open Space may be used for such purposes 
as agricultural, forest, recreational uses, or demonstrate the use is protecting natural 
resources, maintaining or enhancing air or water quality, or preserving the 
historical, architectural, archaeological, or cultural aspects of the real property. 
OPERATOR.  See Article 14 (Mineral Extraction) 
ORDINARY HIGH WATER LEVEL.  The boundary of public waters and 
wetlands and shall be an elevation delineating the highest water level which has been 
maintained for a sufficient period of time to leave evidence upon the landscape, 
commonly that point where the natural vegetation changes from predominantly 
aquatic to predominantly terrestrial.  For watercourses, the ordinary high water level 
is the elevation of the top of the bank of the channel.  For reservoirs and flowages, 
the ordinary high water level is the operating elevation of the normal summer pool. 
OWNER.  Any individual, firm, association, syndicate, partnership, corporation, 
trust or any other legal entity having a proprietary interest in the land. 

 PARCEL.  A unit of real property that has been given a tax identification number 
maintained by the County.  
PARKING SPACE.  An area of not less than two hundred (200) square feet, 
exclusive of drives or aisles giving access thereto, accessible from streets or alleys or 









 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Board of Adjustment 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: August 22, 2022 
Report date: August 12, 2022 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance by Emanuel Gingerich (Applicant) on behalf of Thomas Welsh 
(Owner) to construct a 40-foot by 48-foot shed less than 60 feet from the Right-of-Way and less than 30 
feet from the side and rear yard property lines.  

Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Emanuel Gingerich (Applicant) Thomas Welsh (Owner)  
Address of zoning request: 30100 Ludlow AVE Frontenac, MN 55026 
Parcel: 32.015.0400 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼ Section 15 TWP 112 Range 13 in 
Florence Township. 
Township Information: Florence Township signed approval of a Township building permit on August 
3, 2022, with no additional comments. 
Zoning District: A-2 (General Agriculture District) 
 
Attachments and Links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Plan and Maps 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance:  
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
Emanuel Gingerich (Applicant) on behalf of Thomas Welsh (Owner) has applied for a variance to A-2 
minimum setback standards to replace an existing 528 square-foot accessory structure with a 40-
foot by 48-foot shed on the south side of the lot. The shed would be 12 feet from the rear (east) 
property line and 27 feet from the side yard (south) property line where 30 feet is required. The 
structure will be 39 feet from the Ludlow AVE Right-of-Way to the west at its closest point where 60 
feet is required.  

Variance Standards: 
Variances shall only be permitted when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance and when consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan. 
Variances may be granted when the applicant establishes “practical difficulties” exist in complying 
with the existing official controls. Practical difficulties mean the applicant proposes to use the 
property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control, the plight of the landowner is 
due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if 
granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. Economic considerations alone do not 
constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
 
1) Harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official control: 

 Property line and Right-of-Way setbacks are intended to create separation among adjacent 
structures and roads to allow for adequate access and accommodate future road expansion. 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

 The existing garage to be replaced currently does not meet A-2 District property line setbacks. 
The proposed shed would be constructed at approximately the same distance from the south 
and west property lines and will be closer to the rear (east) property line than the existing 
structure by approximately 18 feet to accommodate the larger structure.    

 The property is within the Shoreland of Frontenac Pond and will have less than 25% 
impervious surface coverage as required by Article 31 of the GCZO Shoreland Regulations. 

 This request appears in harmony with the purpose and intent of the official control.  

2) The variance request is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan: 

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan supports the use of existing rural residences to 
provide rural living opportunities in the unincorporated areas of Goodhue County.  

The proposed garage appears consistent with the Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan. 

3) There are “practical difficulties” in complying with the official control (the 
applicant proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control, the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the 
property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter 
the essential character of the locality): 

 The Applicant’s request to construct a garage is a reasonable use of property in the A-2 
District.  

 The parcel is an existing, rectangular-shaped 0.38-acre parcel which is a non-conforming lot 
size in the A-2 District (2-acre minimum). The property contains a single-family dwelling and 
two accessory structures.  

 The Applicants stated that there are no alternative locations for the garage due to the lot size 
and the location of the existing garage and driveway.   

 The garage will be used to store personal vehicles and a semi-truck.   

 The existing structure was constructed in 1951 which was prior to the adoption of County 
zoning regulations.  

 The lot is surrounded by properties zoned B-2 (Highway Business District) to the north and 
east, R-1 (Suburban Residence District) to the south, and MXH (Mixed-Use Hamlet District) 
to the west. Several properties in the vicinity are less than 1 acre in size and contain structures 
that do not meet property line setbacks found in their associated zoning districts.  

 The request appears unlikely to alter the essential character of the locality. 

4) No variance may be granted that would allow any use that is not allowed in the 
zoning district in which the subject property is located.  

 Accessory structures up to 7,200 square feet are a permitted use in the A-2 Zoning District. 
The request does not constitute a use variance.  

 

The draft Findings of Fact shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed at the Board of Adjustment 
meeting and public hearing. 
 

The Board should specify the facts and reasons that are the basis of the Board’s determination. In 
granting a variance, the Board of Adjustment may impose conditions directly related to, and bearing a 
rough proportionality with, the impact(s) created by the variance. 

Staff Recommendation: 
• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Emanuel Gingerich (Applicant) on behalf of 
Thomas Welsh (Owner) to construct a 40-foot by 48-foot garage no closer than 12 feet from the rear 
yard property line and 27 feet from the side yard property line and no closer than 39-feet from the 
Ludlow AVE Right-of-Way.   















                         

      

                                             

   
    

   

          

            

   

                
              

            

                  

  

               
 

                  

 

              

 

              
 

             
 

              



               

           

         

    

     

         

  

       

      

         

  

        

    

             

          

        

    

          

    

        

          

           

    

           

   

              

 

 

     

      

                
              

       

     

        

      

       

     
      

                    

      
       

                       



      

       

     

      

     
     

                     
               

                

               

                   

                

                 
 

 

 

                                        

           

                  
          

          

                     

   







 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 7 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Board of Adjustment 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: August 22, 2022 
Report date: August 12, 2022 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request submitted by Christopher Pesklo (Owner) appealing the Zoning 
Administrator’s determination that beekeeping is an agricultural use and is therefore not a 
permissible use in the R-1 Suburban Residence District. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Christopher Pesklo (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: 510th ST Path Kenyon, MN 55946 
Parcels: 36.160.0100 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Block 2 of Skyberg in Kenyon Township 
 
Attachments and Links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Maps 
Definitions, R-1 District Regulations, Table of Uses 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance:  
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
Christopher Pesklo (Owner), has formally appealed the Zoning Administrator’s determination that 
beekeeping is an agricultural use and is therefore not permitted in the R-1 Suburban Residence 
District. The property in question is just over 3,000 square feet of vacant land in Kenyon Township 
in the former Town of Skyberg originally platted in the 1800s.  

In May 2022, Zoning staff was contacted by Kenyon Township Supervisors and County 
Commissioner Todd Greseth regarding beekeeping in the R-1 District. The Township Supervisors 
and Commissioner Greseth were specifically referring to the property in question, owned by Mr. 
Pesklo. Staff stated beekeeping would fall under the definition of “Agricultural Use” which is not a 
permitted use in the R-1 District. Kenyon Township sent the property owner a letter stating 
beekeeping would not be a permitted use in the R-1 District that month.  

The property owner spoke with County Zoning staff on May 18, 2022, at the Goodhue County 
Government Center. He questioned possible uses of the property and staff informed him that 
beekeeping and other agricultural uses are not permitted in the R-1 District. 

At this May 2022 meeting, the property owner was informed that he may appeal staff’s interpretation 
of the Zoning Ordinance to the Board of Adjustment. Staff continued discussions about the property 
with the Township throughout June and July 2022. On July 7, 2022, the Zoning Administrator 
conducted a site visit to the property where two bee boxes were discovered along with a picket fence 
and various signs warning of the presence of bees and promoting the area as “pollinator-friendly”. 
Staff sent a certified letter to the property owner on July 11, 2022, ordering the removal of the bee 
boxes.  

Upon receipt of the application for appeal all enforcement procedures are stayed until the Board of 
Adjustment takes action on the item.  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 7 

Appeals Ordinance Language: 

Article 5 Section 4 Subd. 2:  
The Board of Adjustment may reverse or affirm wholly or partly, or may modify the order, 
requirement, decision or determination appealed from and to that end shall have all the powers of 
the officer from whom the appeal was taken and may direct the issuance of a permit. The reasons for 
the Board's decision shall be stated in writing. 

Article 5 Section 4 Subd. 3:  
The Board of Adjustment shall hear and determine appeals:  
A. Where it is alleged there is error or abuse of discretion in any order, requirement, decision, or 
determination made by any administrative official or Zoning Administrator in the enforcement of the 
provisions of any ordinance adopted by the County Board creating zoning districts or regulating the 
use of property in the County; or  
B. From the rulings, decisions, and determinations of any administrative official or Zoning 
Administrator in granting or denying applications from any rule, regulation, restriction or 
requirement of the zoning or set-back ordinances, or any section thereof;  
Applicant Comments:  

• The Applicant has requested the Board of Adjustment consider the small size of the property and 
that the property cannot be used as a building site. Mr. Pesklo has noted the best use for the 
property would be an apiary due to the “…location, lack of adjacent neighbors, and large 
boulevards to the property.”   

• The Applicant has also noted that several cities in the country, state, and Goodhue County allow 
beekeeping in residential areas.  

• Mr. Pesklo has also provided a narrative regarding his proposed use of the property and the 
practices he would use to keep the bees healthy and safe.  

Staff Comments: 

• Staff recognizes the benefits of beekeeping and pollinators in rural areas. Goodhue County does 
not discourage beekeeping in appropriate locations across the County including in agricultural 
districts outside of city limits and within cities that permit beekeeping. 

• Below are definitions staff has referenced regarding beekeeping and agricultural uses:  

o Agricultural Operation: A facility consisting of real or personal property used for the 
production of crops including fruit and vegetable production, tree farming, livestock, 
poultry, dairy products, or poultry products, but not a facility primarily engaged in 
processing agricultural products. 

o  Agricultural Product: Includes, but is not limited to, crops (corn, wheat, hay, potatoes, 
soybeans); fruit; cider; vegetables; floriculture; herbs; forestry; husbandry; livestock 
and livestock products; aquaculture products; horticultural specialties; maple sap; etc. 

o Agricultural Related Products: Means items sold at a farm market to attract customers 
and promote the sale of agricultural products. Such items include, but are not limited to 
all agricultural and horticultural products, animal feed, baked goods…jams, honey, gift 
items… 

o Agricultural Use: The use of land for agricultural purposes, including farming, dairying, 
pasturage agricultural, forestry horticulture, viticulture, and animal and poultry 
husbandry and the necessary accessory uses for packing, treating, and storing the 
produce; provided, however, that the operation of any such accessory uses shall be 
secondary to that of the normal agricultural activities.  

• The GCZO Table of Uses in Article 20 notes that Agricultural Operations are not a permitted use 
in the R-1 District. Based on the definitions above and the Table of Uses, the Zoning 
Administrator determined that beekeeping would qualify as an agricultural use and is not 
permitted in the R-1 District.  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 7 

• Staff acknowledges that several cities, including Red Wing in Goodhue County, allow beekeeping 
in residential areas. Staff researched the beekeeping Ordinance requirements for Red Wing, St. 
Paul, and Minneapolis, MN. These requirements are attached to this report. All three cities 
require a permit for beekeeping in City limits which are renewed regularly. Permit requirements 
include: 

o Proof of completion of a beekeeping class  

o Setbacks from property lines for each hive 

o Notification to neighboring property owners 

o Flyway Barriers/Screening/Fencing 

o Water Source 

• If the BOA is amenable to allowing beekeeping on R-1 zoned properties, it may be prudent to 
direct staff to work on Ordinance Amendments to draft language similar to the ordinances listed 
above and begin either a permitting program or allow beekeeping as a Conditional/Interim Use 
in R-1 Districts to ensure the safety of the bees and neighbors in residential areas.  

Kenyon Township:  
Kenyon Township is aware of the use of the property for beekeeping and has discussed this with the 
Applicant. The Applicant would need to work with the Township regarding beekeeping on the 
property if the BOA reverses the Zoning Administrator’s determination.  

The following shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed at the Board of Adjustment meeting and 
public hearing. 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff does not make a recommendation to the Board of Adjustment on appeals. Whether affirmed or 
reversed the Board should: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and  
• make a determination to affirm or reverse the Zoning Administrator’s rejection of the split 

request.  
 
Action Options for Consideration:  
 

A. The Board of Adjustment may AFFIRM the Zoning Administrator’s determination that 
beekeeping is an agricultural use that is not allowed in the R-1 Zoning District based on the 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s definitions and Table of Uses.  
 

OR 
 

B. The Board of Adjustment may REVERSE the Zoning Administrator’s determination that 
beekeeping is an agricultural use thereby permitting beekeeping by right in all R-1 Districts 
across Goodhue County.  
If reversed the BOA should state the reasons for reversal.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























 

AA-ADA-EEO Employer 
 

 

 
RULES AND REGULATIONS RELATING 

TO THE KEEPING OF ANIMALS 
(pursuant to Saint Paul Legislative Code  

§ 198 and §200) 

CITY OF SAINT PAUL 
DEPARTMENT OF SAFETY AND INSPECTIONS 

ANIMAL CONTROL DIVISION 
ST. PAUL, MINNESOTA  55108 

Phone:  651-266-1100 Fax:  651-266-1120 
Visit our Web Site at www.stpaul.gov/safety-inspections 

 
 

A. Scope and Purpose.   
 

The provisions of this regulation shall apply to the keeping of animals that require a permit from the 
City of Saint Paul, Department of Safety and Inspections, Animal Control Center.  Animals covered 
under this regulation include: more than one (1) rabbit; and/or any hoofed animal, ferret, mink, 
female chicken, turkey, duck, goose, pigeon, or similar small animal or bird, any chinchilla, hamster, 
gerbil, rat, mouse, or guinea pig not maintained as a pet; bees, wild or exotic animals; more than 
three (3) dogs or more than three (3) cats, and other animals not absolutely prohibited by § 198.03. 

 
B. Definitions.   

 
The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and enforcement of this chapter.  The 
word “shall,” indicates a mandatory requirement. 

 
1) Bees are defined as Genus and Species Apes Mellifera. 

 
2) Wild animal means any non-human living creature, wild by nature, endowed with sensation and 

power of voluntary motion, and includes quadrupeds, mammals, birds, fish, amphibians, 
reptiles, crustaceans, and mollusks. 

 
3) Dog and Cat means the male or female of any breed of domesticated dog or cat. 

 
When such animals are kept they shall be controlled to prevent them from harming themselves 
or the public. They shall also be kept in such a manner as to prevent them from becoming a 
public or private nuisance. 
 

C. Application for Permit. 
 

1) The application for a permit shall be on a form supplied by the Department of Safety and 
Inspections, Animal Control Center.  Application for a permit shall be accompanied by written 
approval from 75% of owners and/or renters of privately or publicly owned real estate, within 
150 feet of the outer boundaries of the applicant’s premises (excluding properties that across 
streets) for which the permit is being requested, or proof that the applicant’s property lines are 
150 feet or more from any structure. Properties across any street from the applicant’s property 
are not included in the petition. 

 
2) The application shall list the species and number of animals covered by the permit. 

spierret
Highlight



 

AA-ADA-EEO Employer 
 

3) The permit shall state the species and number of animals which may be maintained on the 
premises, and the permittee shall immediately inform the Animal Control Center, in writing, 
when the number of animals maintained on the premises exceeds the number allowed by the 
permit or when a different number or species is substituted for those listed on the permit. 

 
4) Permits for fostering or rescuing animals on behalf of an organization shall have this stated on 

the application.  A statement must be provided from the rescue organization, on their 
letterhead, and must be signed by the chair or president of the organization. The statement 
must include details regarding the maximum number and species of foster animals that may be 
on the premises and any given time. Permit holders who foster dogs must license their foster 
dogs at their own expense. 

 
5) If the applicant resides in a building or structure that consist of five (5) or more individual units 

(condos, townhomes, apartments, etc.), the applicant must obtain written permission from the 
Property or Association Manager, as well as any affected properties within 150 feet. The 
Manager may create any additional rules and regulations it deems necessary. 
 

6) Where a property consists of a multiple dwelling and lies within 150 feet of the applicant’s 
dwelling, the applicant need only obtain the written consent of the Owner, Manager or other 
person in charge of the building. 
 

D. Facilities. 
 

1) Housing facilities and grounds shall be maintained in a clean and sanitary condition, and in good 
repair. Flies, rodents, and noxious odors shall be controlled. Facilities shall be kept free of fecal 
matter and collected fecal material shall be properly stored and disposed. 

 
2) Construction and maintenance of the holding facilities shall comply with all applicable rules, 

regulations, ordinances, and statutes. 
 

3) Stored fecal matter shall not be allowed to accumulate on the property. Stored fecal matter 
shall be removed at least twice each week between April 1 and November 30. 
 

4) No permit shall be issued until the owner has demonstrated that the animal(s) shall be kept in a 
holding area, capable of containing the animal(s). 
 

5) Fowl, including adult chickens, and other livestock or barnyard type animals may not be housed 
inside human dwellings, including basements. 

 
E. Flying of Pigeons. 

 
Racing and Homing pigeons may be allowed to fly for a period of time not to exceed two (2) hours. 
The two-hour period may take place once in the morning between the hours of 6:00 am and 10:00 
am, and once in the evening between the hours of 3:00 pm and 7:00 pm. The birds shall not be 
allowed to become an annoyance or nuisance to neighboring properties. 

 
 
 



 

AA-ADA-EEO Employer 
 

F. Rodent Control. 
 

When rodent control measures are indicated, rodent control measures will be instituted by the 
permit holder or by any approved licensed pest control operator. 

 
G. Bees. 
 

See “Bee Keeping Rules and Regulations.” 
 

H. Dogs, Cats, and Ferrets. 
 

1) Dogs, cats, and ferrets must be vaccinated and display rabies vaccination tags in accordance 
with Saint Paul Legislative Code Chapter 199. 

 
2) Dog must be licensed in accordance with Saint Paul Legislative Code § 200.02.  

 
3) The owner shall provide proof of current license and vaccinations prior to inspection. 

 
I. Inspections. 

 
The owner shall provide Animal Control with access to the property and any animal housing areas 
for initial, annual, and complaint based inspections. 

 
J. Other Restrictions. 
 

Obtaining and maintaining a permit is also subject to any other restriction or condition not listed in 
the rules and regulations which are imposed by the Animal Control Center to protect the public 
health and safety, or to prevent or control a condition unique to the applicant’s premises or animals. 

 
K. Revocation or Denial of a Permit. 

 
1) Violation of the terms of the permit or the rules and regulations for obtaining and maintaining a 

residential permit shall be grounds for revocation or denial of the permit. 
 

2) Substantial reports from owners or renters within 150 feet of the outer boundary of the 
permittee’s property that the animals frequently or habitually are noisy or create another 
nuisance condition shall be grounds for revocation of the permit.  

 
3) Failure to renew the permit shall be grounds for revocation of the permit. 

 
4) Violation of privately owned building or association runs shall be grounds for revocation of the 

permit. 
 

5) Notification of denial or revocation shall be issued by Animal Control by mail or in person and 
shall mean the permit is no longer valid. The applicant or permit holder will have ten (10) days 
maximum to remove or reduce the number of animals, whichever is applicable.  



 
         1/2018 

 

 
1. Additional petition requirement: If the location of the hive is on a multi‐family lot, all families sharing the 

property must give consent for the hives in addition to the standard 75% already required for the petition. 
 

2. Education: The permit applicant must show proof of having taken a beekeeping class not more than two years 
prior to initial application and must  utilize beekeeping best practices to ensure that the bees do not become a 
public nuisance. Class list can be found at: http://www.mnbeekeepers.com/classes.  
 

3. Number of Colonies: There must be no more than two colonies of bees for every 2,000 square feet of property 
area, with no more than four (4) colonies on any one property.     
 

4. Water Source: A water source on the property shall be provided for the bees.  
 

5. Location of Colonies: The bee hive(s) must not be located in the front of a property. They may be no closer than 
twenty‐five (25) feet to an occupied building on another lot. The hives shall be located at least 10 feet from a 
property line. 
 

6. Fencing: Yards housing bees must be fenced.  A permit is required to install a fence. Information on fencing 
permits can be obtained through the Department of Safety and Inspections, (651) 266‐8989.  If the fence is not a 
privacy fence at least 6 feet in height, the applicant may also be required to install a flyway barrier.   
 

7. Fencing Exemption: Yards that do not border a public right‐of‐way (alley, sidewalk, or street) may request an 
exemption from the fencing requirement. Applicants for a fencing exemption must provide a separate petition 
showing that 100% of property owners on abutting lots give consent for the fencing exemption. 
 

8. Flyway Barriers: Flyway barriers must be used to ensure the bees assume a vertical flight pattern in and out of 
the hive.   

 Flyway barriers must be installed if the colony is less than 25 feet from the property line. The flyway 
barrier must extend 10 feet in either direction from the hive along the property line. 

 Barriers may be made of a wall, fence, or dense vegetation. A combination of these things is permissible. 

 Barriers must be a minimum of 6 feet in height. 

 Fencing: a permit is required to install a fence. Information on fencing permits can be obtained through 
the Department of Safety and Inspections, (651) 266‐8989. 

 
9. Signage: The permit applicant must post a clearly visible warning sign, readable a minimum of five feet from the 

hive, that a bee hive is present on the property. 
 

10. Hive Maintenance: Hives must be kept painted. Unused equipment must be secured to protect from weather, 
theft, or occupancy by swarms. 
 

11. Roof Top Hives: Bee hives intended for roof tops shall be located only on flat roofs. Consider the following for 
roof top hives: 
 

 Proposed Layout: The layout of the roof should show the location of the hives, stair access, and guard 
rails.  
o Access to hives must be provided by a permanent stair system, meeting applicable building code      

 

 

BEE KEEPING RULES AND 
REGULATIONS 

CITY OF SAINT PAUL 
DEPARTMENT OF SAFETY AND INSPECTIONS 

ANIMAL CONTROL DIVISION 
ST. PAUL, MINNESOTA  55108 

Phone:  651-266-1100 Fax:  651-266-1120 
Visit our Web Site at www.stpaul.gov/safety-inspections 



 
         1/2018 

standards. Ladders or other similar devices may not be used in place of stairs. 
o A guard is required if the hive is within 10’ of the roof edge. 
o A layout for a walkway to the hive, depending on the type of roof surface. 
o A strapping system to ensure the lid to the hive is kept secure. 

 Signage: The permit applicant shall post a clearly visible warning sign on the rooftop access door to warn 
persons accessing the roof that a bee hive is present on the rooftop.  The rooftop must have secure and 
limited access.  This requirement is in lieu of the above described signage requirement for ground level 
hives. 

 Historic Preservation Commission: Approval is required if the property is located within a historic 
district or designated site. 

 Engineering: Engineering may be required to ensure the roof is capable of holding a load for 200‐500 
pounds. Consideration should be made to address the stability of the roof due to additional weight, any 
affect to drainage, affects to the roofing material, etc. These items will not be addressed in the City’s 
review of the installation but should be addressed by the property owner prior to installation. 

 
12. Public Nuisance: Care must be taken so as not to cause a public nuisance in your neighborhood. 

 
13. Inspection:  The Saint Paul Department of Safety and Inspections (DSI) is authorized to conduct such inspections 

as it deems necessary to insure compliance with all provisions of Chapter 198, and shall have right of entry at 
any reasonable hour to the bee hive for this purpose. 
 

14. Additional Requirements: Site‐specific requirements may be implemented for community gardens, educational 
institutions, commercial properties, and other sites, as necessary. 

 
 



 
 

 
    Created: 2022-07-28 12:24:55 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 65, Update 2) 

 
Page 1 of 3 

63.100. Honeybees. 

(a) No person shall keep, maintain, or allow to be kept any hive or other facility for the housing of honeybees on 
or in any property in the City of Minneapolis without a permit.  

(b) The number and location of hives, colonies, and/or facilities for the housing of honeybees permitted by this 
section shall be determined by a permit issued by MACC. The permit shall specify any restrictions, 
limitations, conditions, or prohibitions required by MACC as necessary to safeguard public health and the 
general welfare. Subject to a hearing to be held by a committee of the council or other designated hearing 
examiner, if requested within five (5) days of the notification, MACC may deny, suspend, or revoke any 
permit applied for or granted pursuant to this section if any condition or requirement is violated or if the 
keeping of honeybees becomes a public nuisance.  

(c) MACC may grant a permit pursuant to this section only after the applicant has met any educational 
requirements as established and published by MACC and has provided evidence of notification to all 
immediately adjacent property owners in a format supplied by or approved by and to the satisfaction of 
MACC. If the applicant is a renter, approval from the property owner shall be required. Neighbor notification 
shall be the responsibility of the property owner, though it may be carried out by the applicant.  

(d) Any person desiring a permit for the keeping of honeybees shall make application to MACC. Approval of the 
application is subject to reasonable conditions prescribed by MACC. All permits issued shall expire on January 
31 of the year following issuance unless sooner revoked. The application fee for such permit shall be as 
established in the license fee schedule and shall be paid at the time of application. There shall be no fee for 
annual renewal, but the permit must be renewed annually for administrative tracking and notification 
purposes in a format supplied by or approved by MACC. Failure to provide such renewal shall constitute a 
violation of this section and may result in revocation of permit. MACC shall inspect the premises as deemed 
necessary. Should the permit be refused, denied, or revoked, the fee paid with the application shall be 
retained by MACC.  

(e) Standards of care and practice. Any person obtaining a permit pursuant to this section shall comply with the 
following standards of practice:  

(1) Honeybee colonies shall be kept in hives with removable frames, which shall be kept in sound and 
usable condition.  

(2) Each beekeeper shall ensure that a convenient source of water is available to the colony prior to and so 
long as colonies remain active outside of the hive.  

(3) Each beekeeper shall ensure that no wax comb or other material that might encourage robbing by 
other bees are left upon the grounds of the apiary lot. Such materials, once removed from the site, 
shall be handled and stored in sealed containers, or placed within a building or other insect-proof 
container.  

(4) For each colony permitted to be maintained under this section, there may also be maintained upon the 
same apiary lot one (1) nucleus colony in a hive structure not to exceed one (1) standard nine and five-
eighths (9⅝) inch depth ten (10) frame hive body with no supers.  

(5) Each beekeeper shall maintain beekeeping equipment in good condition, including keeping the hives 
painted, and securing unused equipment from weather, potential theft or vandalism, and occupancy 
by swarms. It shall be a violation of this section for any beekeeper's unused equipment to attract a 
swarm even if the beekeeper is not intentionally keeping honeybees.  

(6) Each beekeeper shall enclose their property and/or the apiary with a latching fence. A fence shall not 
be required if the hives are approved to be located on a rooftop so as to be inaccessible to the general 



 
 

 
    Created: 2022-07-28 12:24:55 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 65, Update 2) 

 
Page 2 of 3 

public so that bee movements to and from the hive do not interfere with the ordinary movements of 
persons on adjacent properties or the public right-of-way.  

(7) Each beekeeper shall, if unable or unwilling to continue to maintain their permitted hives, promptly 
notify MACC so that the hives may be made available to an approved honeybee rescue entity, or, if 
necessary, disposed of by MACC. There shall be a fee as established in the license fee schedule for 
disposal of hives.  

(f) Colony density. Any person obtaining a permit pursuant to this section shall comply with the following 
restrictions on colony density:  

(1) Except as otherwise provided in this section, in each instance where a colony is kept less than twenty-
five (25) feet from a property line of the lot upon which the apiary is located, as measured from the 
nearest point on the hive to the property line, and any entrances to the hive faces that lot line, the 
beekeeper shall establish and maintain a flyway barrier at least six (6) feet in height. The flyway barrier 
may consist of a wall, fence, dense vegetation, or a combination thereof, such that honeybees will fly 
over rather than through the material to reach the colony. If a flyway barrier of dense vegetation is 
used, the initial planting may be four (4) feet in height, so long as the vegetation normally reaches six 
(6) feet in height or higher. The flyway barrier must continue parallel to the apiary lot line for ten (10) 
feet in either direction from the hive. All other sides of the area encompassing the colonies shall 
consist of fencing, a wall, dense vegetation, or combination of at least four (4) feet tall. The area 
encompassing the colonies need not entail the entire property. A flyway barrier is not required if the 
property adjoining the apiary lot line is undeveloped, or is zoned agricultural or industrial, or is a 
wildlife management area or naturalistic park land with no horse or foot trails located within twenty-
five (25) feet of the apiary lot line. A flyway barrier is not required if the hives are located on the roof of 
a structure containing at least one (1) full story if all hives are located at least five (5) feet from the side 
of the structure and at least fifteen (15) feet from any adjacent and occupied structure.  

(2) No person is permitted to keep more than the following numbers of colonies on any lot within the city, 
based upon the size or configuration of the apiary lot:  

a. One-half (½) acre or smaller lot: Two (2) colonies;  

b. Larger than one-half (½) acre but smaller than three-quarter (¾) acre lot: Four (4) colonies;  

c. Larger than three-quarter (¾) acre lot but smaller than one (1) acre lot: Six (6) colonies;  

d. One (1) acre but smaller than five (5) acres: Eight (8) colonies;  

e. Larger than five (5) acres: As determined as appropriate by MACC.  

(3) Regardless of lot size, so long as all lots within a radius of at least two hundred (200) feet from any 
hive, measured from any point on the front of the hive, remain undeveloped, the maximum number of 
colonies may be increased by MACC. No grandfathering rights shall accrue under this subsection. If a 
beekeeper serves the community by removing a swarm or swarms of honeybees from locations where 
they are not desired, a beekeeper shall not be considered in violation of the portion of this section 
limiting the number of colonies while temporarily housing the swarm on the apiary lot in compliance 
with the standards of practice established pursuant to this section if the swarm is so housed for no 
more than thirty (30) days from the date acquired.  

(g) Pursuant to section 244.2000(a) of this Code, any rental dwelling license holder notified by an immediately 
adjacent property owner of the intent to house beehives on the immediately adjacent owner's property shall 
post said notice in a common area of the rental property or, if a single-family home, the rental license holder 
shall provide said notice to the tenant by means of mail, hand delivery, or posting. Said notice shall be 
provided by the rental license holder to each new tenant thereafter for as long as the adjacent property 
continues to house beehives. ( Ord. No. 2016-009 , § 1, 2-12-16)  



  

 

    

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

 

 

  



  

  

   

   

   
   

     
    

   

    
 

   

  

  

 
 

   
  

  
 

  

 
  



  

 

 
 

 

  

 

 

   

  

    
   

  

 

  

 

   

  

  

    



     

     

    

  

 

 

    
 

 
 

  

    

  

 
 

  

 
  

  

 

 
 

  
  



   

  

    
 

 

 

                  

 

    

          
  

    

     

   

   
 

   

   

   

   

  

    







DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2022.

2020 Aerial Imagery
Map Created August, 2022 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

A1

R1

56

5
1

0
T

H
 S

T

511TH ST

360361800
KARA A ANDERSON

9.64

360360500
PETER M MOE

3.3

360360300
GEORGE C WOOD

0.3

361700100
RICKY G WILSON

0.73

361600051
LUIS F TELLEZ

0

56

5
1

0
T

H
 S

T

511TH ST

360360300
GEORGE C WOOD

0.3

361600051
LUIS F TELLEZ

0

360360500
PETER M MOE

3.3

361600050
RACHEL KERR TTEE

0

360361800
KARA A ANDERSON

9.64

361600030
WAYNE J SIMONSON

0

361600100
CHRISTOPHER PESKLO

0

361600010
WAYNE J SIMONSON

0

361700070
WAYNE J SIMONSON

0

0 30 60 9015
US Feet

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Public Hearing
August 22, 2022

Christopher Pesklo (Owner)
R1 Zoned District

Block 2 of Skyberg in Kenyon Township

Request appealing Zoning Administrator's
determination that beekeeping is an

agricultural use and is not a permissable
use in the R1 District

MAP 01: PROPERTY OVERVIEW



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2022.

2020 Aerial Imagery
Map Created August, 2022 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

A1R1

56

COUNTY 11

511TH ST

360360200
LOREN J QUAALE

40.44

360360100
KARA A ANDERSON

150.41

360250401
LUCAS D HELLAND

17.09

360250600
BRENT PRIEBE

17.8

360361800
KARA A ANDERSON

9.64

360360500
PETER M MOE

3.3

361700100
RICKY G WILSON

0.73

56

COUNTY 11

5
1

0
T

H
 S

T

511TH ST

360360100
KARA A ANDERSON

150.41

360360200
LOREN J QUAALE

40.44

360250401
LUCAS D HELLAND

17.09

360360500
PETER M MOE

3.3

360250600
BRENT PRIEBE

17.8

360360600
R DARWIN KNOTT RT

36.23

360250400
GENE L FROEHLICH

154.7

361700100
RICKY G WILSON

0.73

360361800
KARA A ANDERSON

9.64

361700110
BRIAN S FISCHER

0

360360300
GEORGE C WOOD

0.3

360360400
PETER M MOE

0.2

361600050
RACHEL KERR TTEE

0

361600010
WAYNE J SIMONSON

0

361600100
CHRISTOPHER PESKLO

0

0 150 300 45075
US Feet

MAP 02: VICINITY MAP
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Public Hearing
August 22, 2022

Christopher Pesklo (Owner)
R1 Zoned District

Block 2 of Skyberg in Kenyon Township

Request appealing Zoning Administrator's
determination that beekeeping is an

agricultural use and is not a permissable
use in the R1 District



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance  Article 10   September 3, 2019 

ARTICLE 10 WORD USAGE AND DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 1.    WORD USAGE 
For purposes of this Ordinance, certain terms or words used herein shall be interpreted as follows: 
Subd 1. The word "person" includes a firm, association, organization, partnership, trust, 

company or corporation as well as individual. 

Subd 2. The word "shall" is mandatory, and not discretionary, the word "may" is permissive. 

Subd 3. Words used in the present tense shall include the future; words used in the singular shall 
include the plural, and the plural the singular. 

Subd 4. The words "used for" shall include the phrases "arranged for", "designed for", "intended 
for", "maintained for", and "occupied for". 

Subd 5. All stated and measured distances shall be taken to the nearest integral foot. If a fraction 
is one-half (½) foot or less, the integral foot next below shall be taken. 

SECTION 2.    DEFINITIONS 
When used in this ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings herein assigned to 
them. Words used in this ordinance, but not defined therein, shall carry the meanings as defined 
in Webster's Unabridged Third International Dictionary or its successor volumes. 

ABANDONED HOMESTEAD.  A formerly established homestead that has since 
been abandoned. 

ACCESSORY BUILDING.  A subordinate building or structure on the same lot, or 
part of the main building, occupied by or devoted exclusively to an accessory use. 

ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT (ADU).  Dwelling units that are accessory to a 
primary dwelling unit and are on the same tax parcel of land as the primary dwelling 
unit. 

AGGREGATED PROJECT.  See Article 18 (WECS) 

AGRICULTURAL LAND.  Land that was planted with annually seeded crops, was in a 
crop rotation seeding of pasture grasses or legumes, or was set aside to receive price 
support or other payments under United States Code, Title 7, Sections 1421 to 1469, six 
of the last ten years prior to January 1, 1991. 

AGRICULTURAL OPERATION.  A facility consisting of real or personal property 
used for the production of crops including fruit and vegetable production, tree farming, 
livestock, poultry, dairy products, or poultry products, but not a facility primarily engaged 
in processing agricultural products.  Agricultural operation shall also include certain farm 
activities and uses as follows:  chemical and fertilizer spraying, farm machinery noise, 
extended hours of operation, manure collection, disposal, spreading or storing, open 
storage of machinery, feedlots, odors produced from farm animals, crops or products 
used in farming.  

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCT.   Includes, but is not limited to, crops (corn, wheat, hay, 
potatoes, soybeans); fruit (apples, peaches, grapes, cherries, berries, etc.); cider; 
vegetables (sweet corn, pumpkins, tomatoes, etc.); floriculture; herbs; forestry; 
husbandry; livestock and livestock products (cattle, sheep, hogs, horses, poultry, 
ostriches, emus, farmed deer, farmed buffalo, milk, eggs, and fur, etc.); aquaculture 

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance  Article 10   September 3, 2019 

products (fish, fish products, water plants and shellfish); horticultural specialties 
(nursery stock, ornamental shrubs, flowers and Christmas trees); maple sap, etc. 

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCT, VALUE-ADDED.  This means the enhancement or 
improvement of the overall value of an agricultural commodity or of an animal or plant 
product to a higher value. The enhancement or improvement includes, but is not limited 
to marketing, agricultural processing, transforming, or packaging, education 
presentation, activities, and tours. 

AGRICULTURAL RELATED PRODUCTS.  Means items sold at a farm market to 
attract customers and promote the sale of agricultural products. Such items include, but 
are not limited to all agricultural and horticultural products, animal feed, baked goods, 
ice cream and ice cream based desserts and beverages, jams, honey, gift items, foodstuffs, 
clothing and other items promoting the farms and agriculture in Goodhue County and 
value-added agricultural products and production on site. 

NON-AGRICULTURAL RELATED PRODUCTS.  Means those items not connected 
to farming or the farm operation, such as novelty t-shirts or other clothing, crafts, and 
knick-knacks imported from other states or countries, etc. 

AGRICULTURAL TOURISM.  “Ag-tourism” and/or “Agri-tourism” means the 
practice of visiting an agribusiness, horticultural, or agricultural operation, including, but 
not limited to, a farm, orchard, vineyard, winery, greenhouse, hunting preserve, a 
companion animal or livestock show, for the purpose of recreation, education, or active 
involvement in the operation, other than as a contractor or employee of the operation. 

AGRICULTURAL USE.  The use of land for agricultural purposes, including farming, 
dairying, pasturage agricultural, forestry horticulture, viticulture, and animal and poultry 
husbandry and the necessary accessory uses for packing, treating and storing the 
produce; provided, however, that the operation of any such accessory uses shall be 
secondary to that of the normal agricultural activities. 

AGRICULTURAL RELATED USE.  Means activities that are accessory to the 
principal use of the property for permissible agriculture use that predominantly use 
agricultural products, buildings or equipment including activities, events or uses that 
represent “agricultural tourism” in Goodhue County as defined in this section, including 
but not limited to: 

  A. Bakeries selling baked goods containing produce grown primarily on site 

  B. Barn dances 

  C. Corn mazes or straw bale mazes 

D. Educational events including but not limited to:  activities associated with the 
promotion of wine usage, viticulture or viniculture classes, historical 
agricultural exhibits, and farming and food preserving classes. 

E. Gift shops for the sale of agricultural products and agriculturally related 
products. 

F. Petting farms, animal display, and pony rides 

G. Playgrounds or equipment typical of a school playground 

H. Pumpkin rolling 

I. Sleigh/hay rides 

J. Vineyard harvest festivals 

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight



spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 24 Amended June 2, 2020    

 

ARTICLE 24   R-1, SUBURBAN RESIDENCE DISTRICT 

SECTION 1.    PURPOSE 
The R-1, Suburban Residence District is intended to provide a district which will define and protect 
areas suitable for low to medium density residential development as the principal land use and to 
allow related facilities desirable for a residential environment.  

SECTION 2.    PERMITTED USES 
All permitted uses are subject to zoning and building permits.  Permitted uses allowed in the R1 
Zoning District shall be as shown in Article 20, Section 7, “Table of Uses”. 

SECTION 3.    CONDITIONAL USES AND INTERIM USES 
All conditional uses and interim uses are subject to zoning and building permits.  Conditional and 
interim uses allowed in the R1 Zoning District shall be as shown in Article 20, Section 7, “Table of 
Uses.” 

SECTION 4.    ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND USES 
Accessory structures and uses in the R1 district may be permitted when located on the same parcel 
as the Principal structure or use and shall comply with the following standards: 

Subd. 1. No accessory buildings or uses shall be permitted on a parcel prior to establishment of 
the principal building. 

Subd. 2.  Detached accessory buildings shall be limited in size to 1,500 square feet in area for 
parcels 12,000 square feet to 1 acre and 2,100 square feet in area for parcels greater 
than 1 acre. 

Subd. 3. Any private garages, either separated or in connected groups, having common 
unpierced dividing walls between contiguous private garages. 

Subd. 4. Any temporary buildings for uses incidental to construction work, which shall be 
removed upon completion or abandonment of such construction work. 

SECTION 5.    DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS 
Parcels in the R-1 District shall meet the following minimum standards: 

Subd. 1. Parcel Size, Width and Depth. 

A. Parcels shall contain a minimum 1 acre of Buildable Area.   

B. Parcels rezoned or subdivided prior to September 3, 2019 shall contain a 
minimum 20,000 square feet of area per dwelling unit when served by an 
individual SSTS or 6,000 square feet of area per dwelling unit when served by a 
Community SSTS. 

C. All parcels shall have a minimum width of 100 feet at the building setback line 
and a minimum depth of 125 feet. 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 24 Amended June 2, 2020    

 

 

Subd. 2. Yard Requirements.  Every building shall meet the following yard requirements: 

A. Front Yard. 

1. There shall be a minimum setback of 40 feet from the right-of-way line of 
any public road or highway; except that, this setback may be reduced to 25 
feet when such public road is a minor street serving only a residential 
subdivision. 

2. In the event any building is located on a lot at the intersection of 2 or more 
roads or highways, such lot shall have a front yard abutting each such road 
or highway. 

B. Side Yard.  Every building shall have 2 side yards.  Each side yard shall have a 
minimum width of 8 feet. 

C. Rear Yard.  Every building shall have a rear yard.  The rear yard shall have a 
minimum depth of 8 feet. 

Subd. 3. Bluff Impact Zone.  For any use or structure in the R-1 District, the setback from the 
bluff impact zone shall be no less than 30 feet. 

Subd. 4. Height Requirements.  Every building shall meet the following height requirements: 

A. Buildings shall not exceed 35 feet in height. 

B. Freestanding accessory structures, including but not limited to, communication 
towers or antennas shall be limited to a height of 10 feet less than the distance to 
the nearest property line or shall be designed and engineered to collapse 
progressively within the distance between the tower and the property line. 

Subd. 5. Parcel Coverage.  No principal building together with its accessory buildings shall 
occupy more than 20 percent of the total parcel area. 

Subd. 6. Substandard Lots of Record.  When contiguous and under identical ownership, must 
be combined to meet minimum standards of this Ordnance in order that any 
permitted or conditionally permitted use is allowed on such lot or lots. 

SECTION 6.    GENERAL REGULATIONS 
Subd. 1. Plat Required. Any subdivision of an R1 zoned parcel that could result in the creation 

of one or more additional dwelling sites shall be platted according to procedures set 
forth in the Goodhue County Subdivision Controls Ordinance. 

Subd. 2. Public Road Frontage or Road Access Easements Standards: 

A. Each Parcel shall include a minimum 33 feet of frontage on a public road right-of-
way line extending to the building line.  As an alternative, a single parcel that does 
not front on a public road may be permitted upon the recording (with the 
Goodhue County Recorder) of a driveway access easement that is a minimum of 33 
feet in width and has been determined to be acceptable by the Goodhue County 
Land Use Management Department.  

B. Access for two or more lots shall follow the Road Design Standards in the Goodhue 
County Subdivision Controls Ordinance.  


	Roll Call
	1. Approval of Agenda
	Motion carried 4:0
	Motion carried 4:0
	Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing
	No one spoke for or against the request.
	4Motion by Fox, seconded by Allen, for the Board of Adjustment to:
	APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Dustin Schroeder (Owner) to Article 12 (Bluffland Protection Standards) to allow construction of an accessory structure no less than 20 feet from the top of a bluff where 30 feet is required.




